

Asphalt Mixture Automated Testing System with Zero Intervention (AMAZE): Revised Training Curriculum

Product 0-6674-03-P4

Cooperative Research Program

TEXAS A&M TRANSPORTATION INSTITUTE COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS

sponsored by the Federal Highway Administration and the Texas Department of Transportation https://tti.tamu.edu/documents/0-6674-03-P4.pdf

ASPHALT MIXTURE AUTOMATED TESTING SYSTEM WITH ZERO INTERVENTION (AMAZE):

REVISED TRAINING CURRICULUM

by

Fujie Zhou Senior Research Engineer Texas A&M Transportation Institute

and

Jorge Roa Assistant Research Scientist Texas A&M Transportation Institute

Product 0-6674-03-P4 Project 0-6674-03 Project Title: Automated Ideal Cracking and Rutting Tests

> Sponsored by the Texas Department of Transportation and the Federal Highway Administration

> > Published: March 2024

TEXAS A&M TRANSPORTATION INSTITUTE College Station, Texas 77843-3135

DISCLAIMER

This research was sponsored by the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) and the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). The contents of this report reflect the views of the authors, who are responsible for the facts and the accuracy of the data presented herein. The contents do not necessarily reflect the official view or policies of FHWA or TxDOT. This report does not constitute a standard, specification, or regulation.

This report is not intended for construction, bidding, or permit purposes. The researcher in charge of the project was Fujie Zhou.

The United States Government and the State of Texas do not endorse products or manufacturers. Trade or manufacturers' names appear herein solely because they are considered essential to the object of this report.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

This project was sponsored by TxDOT and FHWA. The authors thank the personnel who contributed to the coordination and accomplishment of the work presented here. Special thanks are extended to Martin Dassi for serving as the project manager. Many people volunteered their time to serve as project advisors, including:

- Enad Mahmoud.
- Travis Patton.
- Melissa Benavides.
- Marta Stephens.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

List of Figures	. vi
Section I. Introduction	1
Section II. Instructor Guide—Course Module	3
Section III. Student Participant Guide	21
Space Requirements	21
Electrical Requirements	21
System Description	. 22
Radio-Frequency Identification (RFID) Unit	. 22
Carousel Unit	. 24
Air Voids Unit	. 24
Specimen Conditioning Units	. 26
Specimen Storage Unit	. 27
Loading Frame Unit	. 28
Robot Arm Unit	28
Central Computer Unit	. 29
Seven Testing Options	. 30
Pre-Testing Preparation	. 30
Testing Operation Procedure	. 37
Post-Testing Operation	40
Section IV. Training Presentation	41

LIST OF FIGURES

Page

Figure 1. Top View of System	21
Figure 2. Desktop RFID Staging Unit	23
Figure 3. Sample RFID Reader	23
Figure 4. Carousel Unit	24
Figure 5. Weight Measurement Component	25
Figure 6. Saturated Surface Dry Component	25
Figure 7. Specimen Conditioning Unit for IDEAL-CT (or IDEAL-RT)	26
Figure 8. Specimen Storage Unit	27
Figure 9. Loading Frame Unit	28
Figure 10. Robot Arm	29
Figure 11. Central Computer Unit	29
Figure 12. RFID Tag on Asphalt Specimen	31
Figure 13. AMAZE Registrar Software	32
Figure 14. Robot Arm Power Button	33
Figure 15. Starting Robot Initiation	33
Figure 16. Turning On Robot	34
Figure 17. Starting Robot	34
Figure 18. Exit Button and Run Tab	35
Figure 19. Play Button	35
Figure 20. Robot Program Playing	36
Figure 21. Stop Button	36
Figure 22. AMAZE Icon	37
Figure 23. AMAZE System Control Screen	37
Figure 24. Importing Test Profile	38
Figure 25. Screen for Assigning a Test Name	38
Figure 26. Screen of Machine Status	39
Figure 27. Presentation of Test Results	40

SECTION I. INTRODUCTION

State highway agencies including the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) are currently facing many challenges. Three such challenges involve addressing (a) the cracking and rutting distresses that are costing taxpayers billions of dollars annually, (b) the loss of both the workforce and the skills associated with the workforce, and (c) laboratory safety concerns to prevent worker injury. TxDOT is addressing the cracking and rutting problems by implementing a balanced mix design method to design durable mixes. However, the lack of workforce and workforce skills hinders such efforts to some extent. Additionally, the primary safety concern in the laboratory has always been preventing worker injury often associated with the hot asphalt, large masonry saws, high-force testing machines, and toxic chemicals typically found in an asphalt material testing laboratory. Automation of certain processes can alleviate all these safety concerns by reducing the number of employees exposed to the different hazards. An innovative solution to addressing these three current issues is to develop an <u>asphalt mixture automated testing system with zero intervention (AMAZE)</u>, which was the goal of Project 0-6674-03.

As one of the deliverables of Project 0-6674-03, this training curriculum includes an instructor guide, a participant guide, and a presentation.

SECTION II. INSTRUCTOR GUIDE—COURSE MODULE



Key Message	Training title
Interactive	In this training session, we will present the <u>A</u> sphalt <u>M</u> ixture <u>A</u> utomated Testing System with <u>Zero Intervention (AMAZE)</u> .
Notes	N/A

Presentation outline

Introduction

- Motivation
- Objective
- AMAZE development
- □ AMAZE demonstration
- AMAZE verification
- Summary



Key Message	Agenda
Interactive	 This training includes five parts: Introduction. AMAZE development. AMAZE demonstration. AMAZE verification. Summary.
Notes	N/A

Introduction-Motivation

- Safety: Keep people safe
- Productivity

- Improve productivity
- Accuracy/consistency

Accuracy/consistency
Improve accuracy by removing human errors



Key Message	Introduction
Interactive	In this section, we will discuss why automating lab tests is important in terms of safety, productivity, and accuracy/consistency.
Notes	N/A



Introduction-Motivation

Workforce:

- Lack of workforces
- Lack of workforce skills
- Balanced mix design:



Every step is critical to have a good performance pavement



Key Message	Introduction
Interactive	In this section, we will discuss why automating lab tests is important in terms of workforce shortage and balanced mix design.
Notes	N/A

Introduction-Asphalt mixture properties

Key asphalt mixture properties:

AASHTO T 166: Bulk specific gravity (air voids)

- TxDOT Tex-226-F Indirect tensile strength test
- TxDOT Tex250-F: IDEAL cracking test (IDEAL-CT)
- ASTM D8360: Ideal rutting test (Ideal-RT)



Key Message	Introduction
Interactive	 In this section, we will discuss four essential asphalt mixture properties: 1. Bulk specific gravity (or air voids). 2. Indirect tensile strength (IDT). 3. Ideal cracking test (IDEAL-CT)—cracking tolerance index. 4. Ideal rutting test (IDEAL-RT)—rutting tolerance index.
Notes	N/A

Introduction-Objective

Objective

- Present an <u>asphalt mixture automated testing system with zero intervention</u> (AMAZE) for Balanced mix design and quality acceptance
 - Bulk specific gravity (air void) measurement unit
 - Conditioning unit
 - Robotic arm unit
 - IDT/IDEAL-CT/RT loading unit
 - Specimen trash unit



Key Message	Introduction
Interactive	 This section will describe the objective of this training: present AMAZE for balanced mix design and quality acceptance. 1. Bulk specific gravity (air void) measurement unit. 2. Conditioning unit. 3. Robotic arm unit. 4. IDT/IDEAL-CT/RT loading unit. 5. Specimen trash unit.
Notes	N/A



Key Message	AMAZE development
Interactive	This section will describe the current state of practice for the manual operation of each step of the testing process, from measuring air voids, to conditioning specimens, to conducting tests, to dumping broken specimens.
Notes	N/A

Laboratory Manual Operations



Key Message	AMAZE development
Interactive	This section will describe how the robotic arm works for measuring air voids.
Notes	N/A

□ Specimen conditioning

Manual operation





Key Message	AMAZE development
Interactive	This section will present the robotic arm loading the specimen to the conditioning unit.
Notes	N/A

Loading frame



Robot operation



Key Message	AMAZE development
Interactive	This section will present the use of the robotic arm to load the specimen to the loading frame.
Notes	N/A

Loading frame-automated fixture exchange

Manual switch between fixtures



Combined fixture with automatic switch



Key Message	AMAZE development
Interactive	This section will present how the combined fixture works to automatically exchange the CT and RT fixtures.
Notes	N/A

□ Specimen dumping

Automatically catch, push, and dump



Key Message	AMAZE development
Interactive	This section will describe how to remove the tested (or broken) specimen out of the combined fixture and then dispose of it.
Notes	N/A

AMAZE demonstration



Key Message	AMAZE demonstration
Interactive	This section will present a 4-minute video demonstrating how AMAZE works in detail.
Notes	N/A

□ Air voids measurement



Key Message	AMAZE verification
Interactive	This section will compare the air voids of specimens measured by AMAZE and a lab technician. It is clear that the results are very close.
Notes	N/A

Variation of lab technicians



Key Message	AMAZE verification
Interactive	This section will present the air voids measurement from two different lab technicians. For Specimens 1 and 5, there are some differences between the lab technicians, although both technicians have more than 10 years of experience in performing air voids measurement.
Notes	N/A

Consistency of robot measurements



Key Message	AMAZE verification
Interactive	This section will present the consistency of the air voids measured by the robotic arm. For all seven specimens, the measured air voids are almost identical.
Notes	N/A

□ IDEAL-CT and RT



Worst rutting resistant mix Best rutting resistant mix Poor rutting resistant mix

Key Message	AMAZE verification
Interactive	This section will present the comparison of the CT_{Index} and RT_{Index} between AMAZE and the lab technician. The test results are comparable, but AMAZE has slightly smaller variation in terms of standard deviation.
Notes	N/A

RTIndex

Rutting Test Results Comparison: AMAZE vs. Technician

Summary

- AMAZE is a useful testing system to measure the four essential asphalt mixture properties.
- □ AMAZE is ready for implementation.
 - Pilot projects
 - More test units for regional labs.



Key Message	Summary
Interactive	This section will summarize the training.
Notes	N/A

SECTION III. STUDENT PARTICIPANT GUIDE

The student participant guide describes the functions of AMAZE and provides a step-by-step guide on how to use AMAZE.

SPACE REQUIREMENTS

AMAZE requires a minimum space of 12 ft \times 12 ft. Figure 1 shows the top view of the system.



Figure 1. Top View of System

ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS

AMAZE requires two different power sources, one for the main system's components and the other for the central computer, as detailed below.

- System:
 - Power input requirements: 125V AC—50 amps, isolated circuit.
 - Receptable outlet: NEMA 14-50r.
- Central computer:
 - Power input requirements: 100–240V AC—1.8 amps.

SYSTEM DESCRIPTION

AMAZE is a cutting-edge solution designed to revolutionize the asphalt mixture testing process. The goal of the system is to increase consistency and accuracy of test results, eliminate human error, improve efficiency, and reduce testing times. AMAZE is engineered to automatically measure four essential asphalt mixture properties: bulk specific gravity (i.e., air voids with the condition of known rice value), cracking resistance, rutting resistance, and indirect tensile strength.

The system is comprised of six main units that are arranged tightly around a central robotic arm, a UR-5e robot with a gripper (see Figure 1). This robotic arm grabs an asphalt specimen and moves it through the various stages of the testing process to measure essential properties of asphalt mixtures.

AMAZE has multiple components that work together to perform the desired tests for asphalt specimens. The system is composed of six different units. Each unit within the AMAZE system is not only distinct in function but also designed for mobility, such that each unit can be moved for maintenance or transportation. This mobility feature is particularly beneficial for adapting the system layout to different operational environments or specific testing requirements. The subsequent subsections provide a detailed exposition of each unit, delineating the individual roles and functionalities within the AMAZE system.

Radio-Frequency Identification (RFID) Unit

The RFID system integrated into AMAZE serves as a pivotal component for enhancing sample identification, substantially diminishing the risk of conducting incorrect tests on given samples. This system leverages RFID technology to accurately ascertain the identity of each sample, thereby ensuring that the appropriate test is performed.

This RFID system is composed of two primary elements:

• Desktop RFID Staging Unit (Figure 2): This unit plays a crucial role in the initial stages of the testing process. It is utilized for individually registering each sample, a process that involves creating a testing profile file. This file is pivotal for the AMAZE system because it guides the subsequent testing procedures by providing detailed information about each sample.



Figure 2. Desktop RFID Staging Unit

• Sample RFID Reader (Figure 3): Positioned within the AMAZE system, this reader operates during the testing phase. Its function is to identify each sample as it is about to undergo testing. By reading the RFID tags attached to the samples, the reader ensures that each specimen is correctly identified, thus aligning the testing process with the information outlined in the testing profile file.

Figure 3. Sample RFID Reader

In essence, the RFID system in AMAZE enhances the testing accuracy by providing a reliable method of sample identification, which is essential in maintaining the integrity of the testing process and the validity of the test results.

Carousel Unit

The carousel unit in the AMAZE system is integral for feeding asphalt specimens into the testing process. It is designed to hold up to two samples across its three-tiered structure, with each sample position clearly numbered to prevent misplacement. Users are advised to load the samples sequentially without skipping any numbered spot, ensuring an orderly and efficient testing procedure.

This unit is directly docked to the air voids unit, facilitating a smooth transition of samples into the initial phase of testing. Its operation is driven by a powered rotary table, which accurately rotates the tiers to align the samples for pickup by the robotic arm. This precision in rotation is crucial for the consistent and reliable transfer of samples for testing. The overall functionality of the carousel unit, as shown in Figure 4, enhances the efficiency and accuracy of the AMAZE system's testing process.

Figure 4. Carousel Unit

Air Voids Unit

The air voids unit is composed of two key components: weight measurement and saturated surface dry (SSD). The weight measurement component measures the dry weight of an asphalt specimen, the weight of the specimen submerged in the water, and the weight of the SSD of the specimen out of water. The air voids unit is equipped with two linear actuators, which lower an asphalt specimen into the water and lift it out of the water. Figure 5 shows the weight measurement component of the air voids unit.

Another part of the air voids unit is the SSD component (see Figure 6). The major function of the SSD component is to dry the surface of an asphalt specimen with a dampened towel so that SSD is achieved.

Figure 5. Weight Measurement Component

Figure 6. Saturated Surface Dry Component

Specimen Conditioning Units

The AMAZE system includes two specimen conditioning units specifically designed to address the temperature sensitivity of asphalt mixtures. These units are integral for preparing test specimens for the indirect tension asphalt cracking test (IDEAL-CT) and IDEAL rutting test (IDEAL-RT). Although both units share identical designs, they are designated for different conditioning temperatures. The first unit conditions specimens at a standard room temperature of 25 °C (77 °F), suitable for the IDEAL-CT. In contrast, the second unit is tailored for the IDEAL-RT, conditioning specimens at a higher temperature of 50 °C (122 °F). Each conditioning unit possesses the capacity to accommodate up to eight specimens simultaneously, ensuring efficient and uniform conditioning for multiple samples. This feature is especially useful for handling bulk testing scenarios, enhancing productivity and consistency in test results. Figure 7 specifically showcases the specimen conditioning unit designated for either the IDEAL-CT or the IDEAL-RT.

Figure 7. Specimen Conditioning Unit for IDEAL-CT (or IDEAL-RT)

Specimen Storage Unit

In some cases, users may choose to simply measure air voids of an asphalt specimen and then store it for later use. The specimen storage unit shown in Figure 8 is designed to save and store the specimen. It is connected to the main body of the system via the docking system.

Figure 8. Specimen Storage Unit

Loading Frame Unit

The loading frame unit is engineered to perform three tests: IDEAL-CT, IDEAL-RT, and indirect tensile strength. At the heart of this unit is the Humboldt 5040 loader, which applies an axial compressive load to the specimens and records the time, load, and displacement data. Furthermore, this loading frame unit is enhanced with a conveyor belt, a two-in-one fixture, and a self-cleanup system to allow for automatically cleaning up the tested specimen. Figure 9 shows the loading frame unit.

Figure 9. Loading Frame Unit

Robot Arm Unit

The robotic arm unit is the central component within the AMAZE system. It transfers the asphalt specimens among different units during the testing process. It is equipped with a specialized gripper capable of holding the specimen in any orientation.

Furthermore, the robotic arm frame is seamlessly integrated into the AMAZE system's power infrastructure. It is directly connected to the system's power distribution panel, which encompasses essential electrical components such as breakers, surge protectors, and cables of the appropriate gauge to handle expected loads. This integration underscores the unit's reliability and safety during operation. Surrounding the frame of the robotic arm are five receptacles, each dedicated to different units of the AMAZE system. This strategic placement facilitates efficient power distribution and connectivity for the entire system. Figure 10 shows the robotic arm unit.

Figure 10. Robot Arm

Central Computer Unit

The central computer unit is the system's control center, coordinating the testing sequence, processing data from the machines, and sending the test results to the users. Figure 11 shows the central computer.

Figure 11. Central Computer Unit

SEVEN TESTING OPTIONS

AMAZE offers seven different testing options, giving users testing flexibility based on their needs. These seven testing options are described below.

- Option 1: Air Voids Only. When this option is chosen, AMAZE measures the bulk specific gravity of the specimen and then calculates its air voids. After the bulk specific gravity measurement is complete, the specimen is stored in the specimen storage unit. The robotic arm moves to the next task.
- Option 2: IDEAL-CT Only. If users want to skip the air voids measurement and directly perform the IDEAL-CT, they can choose this option. In this case, the robotic arm picks up the specimen and loads it into the loading frame unit for the IDEAL-CT testing. After testing is complete, the loading frame unit automatically pushes the broken specimen to a conveyor belt, transferring the specimen to a trash can.
- Option 3: Air Voids and IDEAL-CT with Specimen Conditioning. This option is designed for users who want to measure the specimen's air voids and condition the specimen in a water bath to the target temperature before running the IDEAL-CT.
- Option 4: Air Voids and IDEAL-RT with Specimen Conditioning. This option allows users to measure the specimen's air voids first and then condition the specimen in a water bath to the target temperature before running the IDEAL-RT. For all IDEAL-RT specimens, conditioning the specimens to the target testing temperature is required.
- Option 5: Air Voids and IDEAL-CT. This option is designed for scenarios where users want to measure the air voids of the specimen and then run the IDEAL-CT. This option provides users with the flexibility to skip the specimen conditioning stage.
- Option 6: IDEAL-CT with Specimen Conditioning. This option directly conditions the specimen in a water bath without performing the air voids measurement. After the specimen reaches its target testing temperature, the robotic arm picks it up, and then the IDEAL-CT is performed.
- Option 7: IDEAL-RT with Specimen Conditioning. This option directly conditions the specimen in a water bath without performing the air voids measurement. After the specimen reaches its target testing temperature, the robotic arm picks it up, and then the IDEAL-RT is performed.

PRE-TESTING PREPARATION

Prior to initiating tests with the AMAZE system, users must complete certain preparatory steps to ensure accurate and efficient testing. These steps are outlined below:

- 1. Select Testing Mode: Users must choose between two distinct operating modes.
 - a. RFID Mode: This mode is chosen when RFID is used for sample identification. The desktop RFID staging unit, as depicted in Figure 2, is utilized to create the testing profile file. In this mode, the sequence of sample placement in the testing carousel is not constrained by the order in the testing profile file, offering flexibility for the user.
 - b. Non-RFID Mode: This mode is comparatively simpler, requiring no additional tagging of the samples. The critical requirement in this mode is the alignment of the

sample order in the carousel with that in the testing profile file, ensuring consistency between the physical setup and the testing input.

2. **Prepare Specimen**. AMAZE can test either laboratory compacted specimens or field cores as long as they are 150 mm in diameter by 62 mm in height. For samples used in RFID mode, an RFID tag must be affixed to each sample. This is achieved using a thin layer of silicone, preferably a low-strength silicone, to secure the tag in place. It is imperative to allow the silicone to dry completely before proceeding with testing to ensure tag stability and integrity during the testing process. Figure 12 shows an RFID tag on an asphalt specimen.

Figure 12. RFID Tag on Asphalt Specimen

3. **Prepare Testing Profile File for AMAZE**. To initiate the testing process, it is imperative to create a testing profile file using the AMAZE registrar software specifically designed to guide users through the creation of a testing profile file. This step is mandatory for each test, regardless of the number of samples being evaluated—even for individual sample testing. Figure 13 shows the AMAZE registrar graphical user interface (GUI).

	Ма	inWindow	- O X
USER INFORMATION		TEST PROFILE	
User Email	Specimen ID	Specimen Name Diameter Height Rice value Air Voids	Performance Test Conditioning
User Name			
TESTING PROFILE MODE			
RFID MODE NON-RFID MODE			
SPECIMEN IDENTIFICATION			
GENERATE ID			
Write ID to Specimen			
Read Specimen ID			
TESTING CHARACTERISTICS			
Specimen Name			
Rice Value			
Specimen Height			
Specimen Diameter			
Air Void Measurement			
Performance Test			
Conditioning			
Add Specimen to Test Profile		Clear Test Profile Import Test Profile	

Figure 13. AMAZE Registrar Software

Upon opening the AMAZE registrar GUI, users should follow the subsequent steps to prepare a testing profile file:

- a. User Information Entry: Begin by entering the user's information into the system. This step is crucial for maintaining a record of who is conducting the test.
- b. Testing Profile Mode Selection: Choose the appropriate testing profile mode from the available options.
- c. Specimen Information Input: Input detailed information about each specimen, including its name, rice value, and physical dimensions like height and diameter. Accurate entry of these data is essential for the precise analysis of the specimen.
- d. Test Combination Selection: For each specimen, select the combination of tests to be conducted. This step is crucial for tailoring the testing procedure to the specific requirements of the specimen.
- e. Addition of Specimen to Test Profile: After inputting all necessary information for a specimen, add it to the test profile file. This action registers the specimen for the upcoming test.
- f. Repeating for Additional Samples: Repeat steps c through e for each additional sample that needs to be tested. Ensure that each specimen is accurately registered with its respective information.
- g. Exporting of the Test Profile: Once all specimens are registered and the test profile is complete, use the "Export Test Profile" button to save the file to a desired location on the computer. This exported file will be used by the AMAZE testing software to conduct the tests.

Following these steps ensures that each specimen is accurately recorded and the testing parameters are set correctly in the AMAZE system. The exported test profile file is a critical component for the AMAZE testing software to perform the tests as per the specified requirements.

- 4. **Prepare Robotic Arm**. The robotic arm is used in AMAZE to transfer asphalt specimens among different testing units. To prepare the robotic arm for testing operations, follow these steps:
 - a. Turn on the robot by pressing the power button on the robot's tablet, as shown in Figure 14.

8 E 2 + Q E		Q :: =
A start of the sta	(and feet tell) Papersy feet Telling (ref	•
	(1967.)	(1000)
•	• • • • •	

Figure 14. Robot Arm Power Button

b. Press the POWER OFF button located on the bottom left of the robot's tablet to start the initialization process, as shown in Figure 15.

Figure 15. Starting Robot Initiation

c. Press the ON button, as shown in Figure 16.

Figure 16. Turning On Robot

d. After the robot boots up, press the START button, as shown in Figure 17.

Figure 17. Starting Robot

e. Exit the initialize screen and go to the RUN tab on the robot's tablet, as shown in Figure 18.

Figure 18. Exit Button and Run Tab

f. Press the PLAY button (Figure 19), and the robot program should begin playing. Figure 20 shows the RUN tab when the program is playing. When needed, users can manually stop the robot's program by pressing the STOP button (Figure 21).

Figure 19. Play Button

Figure 20. Robot Program Playing

Figure 21. Stop Button

- 5. **Prepare AMAZE System**. Before starting automated testing, ensure that the rest of the testing units are ready by taking the following steps:
 - a. Check that the specimen storage unit is empty. If not, empty the storage area.
 - b. Check that the carousel unit is empty. If not, remove all remaining specimens/other items.
 - c. Check that both conditioning units are empty. If not, remove all remaining specimens.
 - d. Check that the loading frame is all the way down to its original position and the RT fixture is clear. If not, set it to the original position and clear the RT fixture.

TESTING OPERATION PROCEDURE

After completing the pre-testing preparation, proceed to the testing phase with the following steps.

1. Launch the AMAZE Testing Software. Double-click the AMAZE icon (Figure 22) located on the laptop desktop to launch the AMAZE testing software. Once launched, the screen shown in Figure 23 will be displayed. This GUI is instrumental in controlling individual machines, initiating and stopping tests, and displaying test results.

Figure 22. AMAZE Icon

System Co	ntrol Results Analys	sis										
•	Robot Arm	Carousel	•	Air Voids Machine	SSD	n 😑	CT Conditioning	RT Cond	litioning	SSI	02	Loading Frame
							AMAZ	E TEST PROFILI	E			
	TEST NAME			Spec	cimen ID	Specimen Nan	ne Diameter	Height	Rice Value	Air Voids	Performance Tes	t Conditioning
	Import AM	NAZE Test Profile										
	Carousel	Air Voids Machine				CT Machine		RT Machine				Loading Frame
	Home Carousel	BASKET UP		UELT ON		A-UP B-UF	- A-UP	0-UP		DRY SAMPLE	UP	CT ON
		BASKET DOWN		BELT OFF		C-UP D-UF	C-UP	D-UP			STO	P PUSHER ON
		TARE SCALE									DOW	N RT POSITION

Figure 23. AMAZE System Control Screen

2. **Import the AMAZE Test Profile File**. Within the GUI, click on the "Import AMAZE Test Profile" button. Select the test profile file previously created using the AMAZE registrar software. This file contains all the necessary configurations and specimen details for the test. Figure 24 shows the testing profile after importing the file.

	TTI Automated Asphalt Testing System - ×												
System C	iontrol Results Analy:	sis											
	Robot Arm	Carousel	•	Air Volds Machine	S	D1	ст со	nditioning	🛑 RT CO	onditioning	. 55	5D2	Loading Frame
		-						AMAZE	E TEST PROF	ILE			
	TEST NAME		_	Spe	cimen ID	Specime	n Name	Diameter	Height	Rice Value	Air Voids	Performance Test	Conditioning
		NON BEID MODE		b0cb61aa2e9d41	9fb98fe862b170	d069 TRB_sa	mple_1				Yes		
		NON_REID MODE		df1c146da4944e	68aa69f3e6384b	2fde TRB_sa	mple_2	150		2.45		None	No
	Clear AM	AZE Test Profile											
	Carousel	Air Voids Machine				CT Machir			RT Machine				ading Frame
	Home Carousel	BASKET UP		BELT ON		A-UP	B-UP	A-UP	B-UP		DRY SAMPLE		CT ON
		BASKET DOWN		BELT OFF			D-UP		D-UP				PUSHER ON
		TARE SCALE										DOWN	RT POSITION

Figure 24. Importing Test Profile

3. **Assign a Name to the Test**. Assign a unique and identifiable name to the test. This step is crucial for record-keeping and future reference. Figure 25 shows the GUI after adding a test name.

	TTI Automated Asphalt Testing System _ >														
System C	iontrol Results Analy	ysis													
•	Robot Arm Carousel		•	Air Volds Machine	•		Ο στο	onditioning	RT CO	nditioning	SS SS	D2	Loading Frame		
			_	AMAZE TEST PROFILE											
TEST NAME TRB Test			Spec	cimen ID		Specimen Name	Diameter	Height Rice Value		Air Voids	Performance Test	Conditioning			
				b0cb61aa2e9d419fb98fe862b170d069			TRB_sample_1								
	REID MODE NON_REID MODE			df1c146da4944e68aa69f3e6384b2fde			TRB_sample_2					None			
Import AMAZE Test Profile															
Clear AMAZE Test Profile															
START TEST															
	Carousel	Air Voids Machine					CT Machine		RT Machine				ading Frame		
	Home Carousel	BASKET UP		BELT ON		A-UF	B-UP	A-UP	B-UP		DRY SAMPLE		CT ON		
		BASKET DOWN		BELT OFF		CUP	P D-UP		D-UP				PUSHER ON		
		TARE SCALE										DOWN	RT POSITION		

Figure 25. Screen for Assigning a Test Name

4. Verify Machine Status. Ensure that all the machine status LEDs displayed at the top of the GUI are green. This indicates that each machine is operational and ready for testing. If any LED is red, indicating an issue, reboot the corresponding machine and wait until the LED turns green, signaling readiness. Figure 26 shows all the machine status LEDs as green.

TTI Automated Asphalt Testing System _ ×														
System Control Results Analysis														
•	Robot Arm Carousel		•	Air Voids Machine SSD1		CT Conditioning		RT Conditioning		ss	D2	Loading Frame		
				AMAZE TEST PROFILE										
	TEST NAME TRB test			Sper	rimen ID	Specimen Name	Diameter	Height Rice Value		Air Voids	Performance Test	Conditioning		
				b0cb61aa2e9d41	9fb98fe862b170d069	TRB sample 1	150	62 2.54		Yes	CT	No		
	RFID MODE NON_RFID MODE			df1c146da4944e	68aa 69 f 3 e 6 3 8 4 b 2 f d e	TRB_sample_2		150 62 2.45		Yes	None	No		
Import AMAZE Test Profile														
	Clear AM/	AZE Test Profile												
START TEST														
STOP TEST														
Carousel Air Voids Machine				SSD1		CT Machine		RT Machine		SSD2	Loa	Loading Frame		
	Home Carousel BASKET UP			BELT ON A-U		B-UP A-UP		B-UP		DRY SAMPLE				
	BASKET DOWN			BELT OFF C-U							STOP	PUSHER ON		
	TARE SCALE										DOWN	RT POSITION		

Figure 26. Screen of Machine Status

- 5. **Start Test**. Once all LEDs are green, a test name is assigned, and the test profile file is successfully loaded, the START TEST button will become active. Press this button to commence the testing process.
- 6. **Present Test Results**. Once the testing process is initiated using the AMAZE testing software, the system will automatically conduct tests on each specimen. As each specimen is tested, its results are immediately recorded and displayed in the results table, which can be found under the Results Analysis tab. Figure 27 shows the tab. In addition to the results being displayed on the Results Analysis tab, all of the raw data are saved to a folder named Result Folder under the AMAZE folder.

Activities Applications a main.py Jun 16 10:49												👸 💎 🔹 🗟 79 %			
TTI Automated Asphalt Testing System															
System Control Results Analysis															
UUID	Date	Sample Name	Diameter	Height	Rice	Dry W.	In Water W.	SSD W.	Air Voids %	Water Abso.	CT Peak Load	Tensile Str.	Fracture E.	Slop	Refresh Results
278e0538363	2023-05-10	primera				None	None	None	None	None	18.27	1250.65	8147.82	6.52	Data
591ff3c22799	. 2023-05-10	segunda				None	None	None	None	None	14.15	968.62	8508.64	3.72	
662e107c135	2023-05-11	vulcan				2280.9	1275.3		12.49	3.55	14.67	1004.22	7645.97	4.09	
a514ee247da	2023-05-23	primero				2373.0	1347.5	2376.0		0.29	26.78	1833.19	12014.66	10.68	
_															
			Ideal								Ideal - R				
0.8															_
Q 0.6								0.6							
peo								DRO							
⊐ 0.4															
0.2															
												0.5 0.6			0.9
			Displa	cemenc (mm)							Displace	mene (mm)			
	🗱 📄 👢	0													

Figure 27. Presentation of Test Results

POST-TESTING OPERATION

Once all the specimens are tested, users should receive a notification on the screen that the test is complete. Following are the post-testing operation steps to then take:

- 1. Load a new testing profile and assign a new test name if starting another test.
- 2. If another test does not need to be started, complete the following steps for the correct turn-off procedure.
 - a. Close the AMAZE application.
 - b. Turn off all the machines via their ON/OFF switch.
 - c. Clean up the specimen trash and the specimen storage unit.
 - d. Turn off the robotic arm.
 - e. Save results on a removable flash drive.

SECTION IV. TRAINING PRESENTATION

This training presentation includes the reasons for developing AMAZE, the function of AMAZE, and the verification of AMAZE.

Presentation outline

- Introduction
 - Motivation
 - Objective
- AMAZE development
- AMAZE demonstration
- AMAZE verification
- Summary

Introduction-Motivation

- Safety: Keep people safe
- Productivity
 - Improve productivity
- Accuracy/consistency

Improve accuracy by removing human errors

Introduction-Motivation

- Workforce:
 - Lack of workforces
 - Lack of workforce skills
- Balanced mix design:

Every step is critical to have a good performance pavement

Introduction-Asphalt mixture properties

Key asphalt mixture properties:

- AASHTO T 166: Bulk specific gravity (air voids)
- TxDOT Tex-226-F Indirect tensile strength test
- TxDOT Tex250-F: IDEAL cracking test (IDEAL-CT)
- ASTM D8360: Ideal rutting test (Ideal-RT)

Introduction-Objective

Objective

- Present an <u>asphalt mixture automated testing system with zero intervention</u> (AMAZE) for Balanced mix design and quality acceptance
 - Bulk specific gravity (air void) measurement unit
 - Conditioning unit
 - Robotic arm unit
 - IDT/IDEAL-CT/RT loading unit
 - Specimen trash unit

Laboratory Manual Operations

AMAZE development

Specimen conditioning

Manual operation

4

Robot operation

AMAZE development

Loading frame

Robot operation

Loading frame-automated fixture exchange

Combined fixture with automatic switch

Manual switch between fixtures

4

AMAZE development

□ Specimen dumping

Automatically catch, push, and dump

AMAZE demonstration

AMAZE verification

4

□ Air voids measurement

Variation of lab technicians

AMAZE verification

Consistency of robot measurements

□ IDEAL-CT and RT

Rutting Test Results Comparison: AMAZE vs. Technician

Summary

□ AMAZE is a useful testing system to measure the four essential asphalt

mixture properties.

- □ AMAZE is ready for implementation.
 - Pilot projects
 - More test units for regional labs.

